

Murray State's Digital Commons

Board of Regents Meeting Minutes

Digitized Collections

8-8-1958 12:00 AM

1958-08-08

Board of Regents, Murray State Normal School

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.murraystate.edu/borminutes

Recommended Citation

Board of Regents, Murray State Normal School, "1958-08-08" (1958). *Board of Regents Meeting Minutes*. 296.

https://digitalcommons.murraystate.edu/borminutes/296

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the Digitized Collections at Murray State's Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Board of Regents Meeting Minutes by an authorized administrator of Murray State's Digital Commons. For more information, please contact msu.digitalcommons@murraystate.edu.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

MURRAY STATE COLLEGE

August 8, 1958

THE BOARD OF REGENTS MET IN THE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT AT 2:00 P.M., C.S.T.1 ON FRIDAY, AUGUST 8, 1958, IN REGULAR SESSION, WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT: MR. R. H. WHITE, MR. GLENN DORAN, MR. ALTON B. MITCHELL, AND DR. ROBERT R. MARTIN. CHAIRMAN MARTIN PRESIDED. MR. LOUIS LITCHFIELD, MR. W. G. SCHOEPFLIN, AND MR. JOHN B. BLACKBURN WERE ABSENT.

AGENDA

President Woods presented the following agenda for the meeting:

AGENDA

· OF

MEETING OF BOARD OF REGENTS

August 8, 1958

- I. MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON JUNE 20, 1958.
- II. REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON ENTRANCE, CREDITS, CERTIFICATION AND GRADUATION.

III. Resignations

Name	Assignment	EFFECTIVE	
ALVIN FARRIS PAT McNeely	Janitor - Adm. Bldg. Secry to President	7-7-58 8-23 - 58	

IV. EMPLOYMENT

	-	MONTHLY	
<u>Name</u>	Аѕѕідимент	- <u>Salary</u>	EFFECTIVE ·
BLAINE BALLARD	INSTRVOICE-FINE ART	rs \$450.00	9-1-586-30-59
George Barrett	Janitor - Adm. Bldg.	160.00	8-1-586-30-59
JOSEPH J. RONDY	Assoc. Prof., LANGL	лт. 525.00	9-1-586-30-59
Jean Shahan	SecFine Arts (Part	150.00	6-12-589-12-58
	TIME)	
PAUL GALLOWAY	Janitor-Vet Village	150.00	7-1-586-30-59
HAZEL M. COWIN	PART-TIMEMATH.	210.00	6-16-58-8-8-8-58
Sandra Rhoades	SecEd. Dept. (Part-	TIME 81.75	7-1-586-30-59
MRS. WM. WALMSLEY	PART-TIMEH. Ec. DE	рт. 110.00	7-28-588-8-58
ELLA MURRAY KEE	Nurse	225.00	9-8-586-30-59
PATSY WILKINS	Nurse	150.00	9-1-581-31-59
		225.00	2-1-595-31-59
BETHEL RICHARDSON	Bus, Dept., Sp. Cours in Accounting	ae 390.00	7-1-588-8-58
Tom Zachery	INSTRINDUSTRIAL ART	s 495.00	9-5-586-4-59
Mary Martha Cagle	Seciy, Part-time	. 80.00	9-1-586-30-59
	HEALTH AND PHYS. Ed.		
JAMES PAUL MATTHAI	Asst. ProfSocial S	6cı. 500.00	9-1-586-30-59

V. Additional Student Employment for Fine Arts Department

At the time the budget was made there apparently was not sufficient funds to go forward with the enrollment program of student labor. Mr. Farrell has asked that the budget for student employment be increased in the amount of \$238.00. I so recommend.

ADJUSTMENTS IN SALARY

<u>Name</u>	Assignment	F _{ROM}	<u>To_</u>	EFFECTIVE
PATSY ROWLAND	PARTTIME SECTY SECTY TO PRESIDEN	•	\$300.00	8-24-586-30-59
James Rogers	Accountant Bus. Office	450.00	475.00	9-1-586-30-59

VI. Intersession Courses on Campus

	Name.	Subject	<u>Hours</u>	SALARY	EFFECTIVE .
	Dr. Don Hunter	Education G281	3 SEM.	\$300.00	8-11-588-29-58
	DR. ALTA PRESSON	Н оме Е с. 235	3 SEM.	300.00	8-11-588-29-58
	Dr. R. B. Parsons	Education 212	3 SEM.	300.00	8-11-588-29-58
	Prof. B. J. TILLMA	AN SOCIOLORY 101B	3 SEM.	300.00	8-11-58-8-29-58
	Mr. GARRETT BESH	EAR EDUCATION 201	3 SEM.	300.00	7-28-588-15-58
×	Dr. LIZA SPANN	BIOLOGY 101	, 4 SEM.	400.00	8-11-589-5-58
	MRS. JOE NELL RAY	YBURN SEMINAR G231	4 SEM.	300.00	6-16-588-8-58
		STUDENT TEACHING			

^{*} OMIT--DID NOT MATERIALIZE

STUDY CENTER BEING HELD IN AUGUST

<u>Name</u>	Subject	<u>Hours</u>	Place_	SALARY	EFFECTIVE
Dr. HARRY M	M. Sparks Educa, G235	3 S _{EM} .	Раписан	\$300.00	8 -11- 588-29-58

... VII. STATUS OF STUDENT UNION BUILDING

The contractors are making satisfactory progress on the construction of the Student Union Building. The contract did not include the chillers and pumps for air conditioning. The architect estimates that the cost of installing the chillers and pumps would be \$75,000 if done after the other construction is completed. If it could be done before construction is completed, he feels that we could save \$7,000 or \$8,000 making the cost \$67,000 or \$68,000.

VIII. Application for 1959 Summer Institute in the Sciences

An application was made for a third Science Institute to be operated during the summer of 1959. The request was for \$84,450 which would include a minimum of 65 participants. Lask your approval of the President's request for this third Science Institute to be operated by Murray State College.

IX. REPORT ON HOUSING

THE MEN'S DORMITORIES HAVE BEEN FILLED COMPLETELY SINCE APRIL AND THE WOMEN'S DORMITORIES ARE ALSO FILLED TO CAPACITY.

In keeping with the action of the Board, I asked the Department of Finance for authorization to request a loan from the Housing and Home Finance Agency. I have the approval of Dr. Traylor to make this request. We have not worked out the details of the cost, but it appears now that it will be necessary to charge a minimum of \$4.00 a week and it might be necessary to go as much as \$4.25 per week in order to repay the loan from room rent. The Department of Finance has indicated that 50 or 60 thousand dollars is all that could be made available for this project which would be spent primarily for furnishings.

As per your authorization, I contacted the Department of Finance. I have been authorized to negotiate with the Housing and Home Finance Agency to secure the maximum loan that college dormitories can be amortized for the construction of a 236-bed men's dormitory.

The interest rate on loans from the Housing and Home Finance Agency is now 2 and seven—eighths percent. I have the forms on which to make the request. The preliminary estimate on the cost of such a building will be approximately \$650,000 which includes \$50,000 for movable furniture. The cost per thousand over a 40 year period or 38 year period on which the principal will be retired is \$43.59 per thousand. The Housing and Home Finance Agency will require us to show an income of 1.35 x actual annual cost of the loan per annum. Therefore, we will have to show \$35,308 or more to repay a loan in the amount of \$600,000. It will be necessary for us to charge a minimum of \$4.25 per week per student over a period of 36 weeks during the regular academic year and \$4.25 per week per student over a period of 8 weeks for the summer session. In order to finance this loan at the above mentioned figure, it will be necessary to pledge revenue for operation from existing facilities or sources, such as the dormitories and trust and agency.

According to the Office of the Dean of Students, at least 275 men students have requested rooms in the dormitories that could not be accommodated.

ASK YOUR ADVICE AND YOUR CONCURRENCE IN AND APPROVAL FOR MY MAKING THE FOREGOING STATEMENT.

X. REPORT ON INSURANCE.

Insurance for students to be explained at the Board Meeting.

- XI. REPORT ON THE THOMAS P. NORRIS STUDENT LOAN FUND.
- XII. Annual Report of the President, which includes the Annual Report of the Business Manager.
- XIII. MATTERS WHICH MAY ARISE BETWEEN NOW AND NEXT BOARD MEETING.

In keeping with the action of the Board on the June 20th meeting and through the efforts of Mr. Doran, an option was secured on the tract of Land east of the Orchard Heights farm. Mr. Doran has communication from Dr. Traylor which will serve as a progress report on the efforts to secure this Land.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

R. H. Woods President

RHW: PLM

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON JUNE 20, 1958, APPROVED.

Motion was made by Mr. Mitchell that the reading of the minutes of the Board meeting held on June 20, 1958, be dispensed with and that they be approved as submitted. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and was carried unanimously.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON ENTRANCE, CREDITS, CERTIFICATION, AND GRADUATION APPROVED.

President Woods presented the Report of the Committee on Entrance, Credits, Certification, and Graduation and recommended that it be approved as follows:

. August: 8; 1958

To the Board of Regents Murray State College Murray, Kentucky

GENTLEMEN:

As per the duties assigned to the Committee on Entrance, Credits, Certification

AND GRADUATION, WE REPORT AS FOLLOWS:

The following students have applied for degrees to be granted August 8, 1958. They have met the requirements for the degrees for which they have applied, and we recommend that you grant the following degrees:

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN AGRICULTURE

HERBERT CHERRY, JR.
THOMAS LEE DARNALL
BOBBIE EUGENE FULTON

JAMES THOMAS HINDS RONALD LEE PURYEAR GLENN ALLEN WALDROP

BACHELOR OF MUSIC

SHIRLEY JOYCE CHILES

BACHELOR OF MUSIC EDUCATION

SHARON ELIZABETH BALLARD JACK RICHARD BARNARD JOETTA GIBSON CAROLYN SUE HOUSTON RICHARD ELBERT NORRIS SAMUEL EDWARD ORR

JERRY MAX WINDER

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN HOME ECONOMICS

BARBARA JEAN TAYLOR CATES
MARY ANN CHURCHILL

CONSTANCE MAE MORIARTY GALLOWAY
BETTIE BLALOCK GRAVETTE
OPAL YANCY MITCHELL

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE

KENNETH CLAY ADAMS
CURTIS BENNETT ALDERDICE
CHARLES EDWARD ARNETT
WILLIAM COY ARNETT
VIOLET ATKINS
FRANCES BROWN BAKER
MAY TOWERY BLADES
THELMA ELIZABETH BRANDON

BILLY HOWARD CREAMER GLORIA ANN PLYMALE CUNNINGHAM WILMA VAUGHN DARNELL KATIE MAE DORAN EDWARD LEON DORTCH LORINE WYATT DOUGLAS IRENE FERREN DRISKILL ANNA BARCLAY DUNEVANT JAMES ARLESS EDGAR FRANKIE THOMAS EDWARDS ARTICE FLOYD ENGLAND * JAMES ED FARRIS LILLIE VANCE FARRIS DONA WHITE FRANKLIN KENNETH RAY FULLER VANDA OLIVER GERARD CHARLIE GIBBS JUNELL GRISE GORANFLO ELEANOR ANN GREENFIELD WILLIAM LONNIE HARP, JR. BILLY MORRIS HATLEY CHARLES BAILEY HENDRICKS MARLIN DEAN HENLEY

BETTY DOLORES BYRN
JAMES ALVIN CALHOUN
SHERMAN ELLIS CHILDS
ELIZA RAYE COLLIE
STANLEY HILL COOPER
NANCY LOU COTHAM
DANIEL MURPHY COWHERD
BILLY HOWARD CRADDOCK

CLARY BAILEY HICKS EUNA MAE GOLDEN HICKS MINERVA COX HILL OTHEL MAE JACKSON HILLIARD JAMES FARRIS HOPKINS ELMA CRESS HUNTLEY RONALD AVERY JONES VICTORIA FERREN JONES WALTER R. JONES, JR. 7 JAMES CHARLES KEEL VIRGIE DUFF KIRK KATHLEEN SHELTON LAWSON DONALD LIONEL LAX RUTH HOPE PARKER LESSLEY MARGUERITTE STORY LOFTON LUCILLE MAY MAHAN MARILYN MALLORY MAHAN VERDA LECKY McCALLISTER FRIEDA JONES McCLAY ELVA ESTES McCONNELL, JR. LUCY KESTNER McGINLEY EMILY ADAMS McGUIRE KEAN RANDOLPH MC KINNEY

LELA KEMP McMICAN SUZANNE NIX GEORGE EDWARD NOLAN, JR. DON WALLACE OLIVER SADIE BELLE OWEN MARY ANN OWENS Nelle IRVAN PACE ROBERT JOE PALMER Velna Gray Paschall VERNA COX PETWAY FLOSSIE BARKER PEYTON NORA EMMA POLLEY JAMES ELLIS PRESSON, JR. EDNA EARLE QUARLES GEORGE ELTON RIKEL ANNA BETH ROBERTS RUBYE Moss ROBERTS

ALINE KENNEDY SHAW LOLA HAZEL SHAW LORAINE DAILY SLAYDEN RICHARD CRAM SMITH Tessie Haymes Smith DONALD WAYNE SPARKS MARIE SULLIVAN SUTTON CHARLES EVERETT TABOR JAMES CARL TALBOTT, JR. MARGARET ANN TARRY MARTHA SANDEFUR TARRY . PAULINE COOKSEY TITSWORTH SHIRLEY ANN CATHEY TOON NELLA MAE WADLINGTON G. W. WALKER CYNTHIA HANCOCK WHITE BERNICE SLAYDEN WOOLDRIDGE MARIE KALER WYMAN

BACHELOR OF ARTS

BILLY JOE BRYAN
NANCY PHYLLIS MELVIN

ELI MILLER ALEXANDER

MARY JOINER ROWLAND

BRADIE MABEL SCHOFIELD

BILLY JOHN NORSWORTHY: CHARLES RAYMOND RICKLI

HOWARD ISHMAEL MARTIN

MASTER OF ARTS IN EDUCATION

ANNE DOPPLER AMOS WILLIAM GARRETT BESHEAR ROBERT EDWIN BYRD NITA KAY CAMPBELL J. W. CATHEY MABEL ROSE CISSELL JAMES ROBERT DESPAIN WALTER HIRAM ELLIS ROY DEWAYNE ETHERIDGE . BUEL DALE FAUGHN THOMAS DOUGLAS FORREST OLIS HARDIN BETTY GRAVES HAWKINS Jessie Giles Henderson DARRELL LEE HOLLEY LAVERN HOWARD CLETUS L. HUBBS, JR. FRANCES COLEMAN MACLEAN JOHNSON C. W. JONES HENRY FREDERICK KIRTS WILLIAM EDWARD LIGGETT VERLINDA JANE LONG Nelle Graves Lowe MARIE MARKUS MAEDEKER

EDITH THOMPSON MASON WILLIAM BURNICE MILLER MILDRED NALL MOORE GERALDINE MILSTEAD MYERS RICHARD LOUIS McCLAIN CRYSTAL FONDAW PARKS KATHLEEN PATTERSON HALLIE CATHERINE PEEPLES MARY LUCILLE PEEPLES WILLIAM PAUL PERDUE MARY FRANCES POWELL ROBERT JOSEPH ROGERS VENONA LILLIAN ROGERS CHARLES HOMER SPAIN JO ANN HUMPHREYS TERRELL LETHA VINSON THURSTEN RUBE LOUIS THURSTEN CHARLES HOWARD TOLLEY CAREY THOMAS VINSON, JR. VIRGINIA SHELTON WALKER ROY THOMAS WHEELER WILLIAM CLIFTON WILSON THOMAS MICHAEL ZACHARY

GRANTING OF DEGREES AUGUST 30, 1958

May degrees be granted August 30, 1958, to those who complete the requirements for the degrees for which they have applied.

(SIGNED)

· . ·H. L. OAKLEY

HARRY M. SPARKS

A. CARMAN

W. G. NASH

(SIGNED)

CLEO GILLIS HESTER

R. W. FARRELL

A. M. WOLFSON

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. DORAN THAT THE REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON ENTRANCE, CREDITS, CERTIFICATION, AND GRADUATION BE APPROVED AND THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE

^{*} If his transcript comes from the University of Kentucky

GRANTING OF DEGREES. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. WHITE AND WAS CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

RESIGNATIONS AND EMPLOYMENT APPROVED.

DR. Woods reported to the Board that in accordance with the desires of the Board he had talked again with Mr. Tillman to try to persuade him to remain at Murray State College, but to no avail.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. WHITE THAT THE RESIGNATIONS AND EMPLOYMENT AS PRESENTED BY THE PRESIDENT BE APPROVED. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. MITCHELL AND THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON ITS ADOPTION WITH THE FOLLOWING RESULTS: MR. WHITE, AYE; MR. DORAN, AYE; MR. MITCHELL, AYE; AND DR. MARTIN, AYE.

ADDITIONAL EMPLOYMENT AND ADJUSTMENTS IN SALARY APPROVED.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. WHITE THAT THE ADDITIONAL EMPLOYMENT AND ADJUSTMENTS IN SALARY BE APPROVED AS SUBMITTED. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. MITCHELL AND THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON ITS ADOPTION WITH THE FOLLOWING RESULTS: MR. WHITE, AYE; MR. DORAN, AYE; MR. MITCHELL, AYE; AND DR. MARTIN, AYE.

Additional Student Employment for Fine Arts Department approved.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. DORAN THAT THE BUDGET FOR STUDENT EMPLOYMENT FOR THE FINE ARTS DEPARTMENT BE INCREASED IN THE AMOUNT OF \$238.00. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and the roll was called on its adoption with the following results: Mr. White, Aye; Mr. Doran, Aye; Mr. Mitchell, Aye; and Dr. Martin, Aye.

INTERSESSION COURSES ON CAMPUS AND STUDY CENTER BEING HELD IN AUGUST, APPROVED.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. WHITE THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE INTERSESSION COURSES AND THE STUDY CENTER AS SET FORTH IN ITEM VI OF THE AGENDA. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. DORAN AND THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON ITS ADOPTION WITH THE FOLLOWING RESULTS:

MR. WHITE, AYE; MR. DORAN, AYE; MR. MITCHELL, AYE; AND DR. MARTIN, AYE.

RESIGNATION OF PAT MCNEELY ACCEPTED.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. MITCHELL THAT THE RESIGNATION OF PAT MCNEELY AS SECRETARY TO THE PRESIDENT AND AS SECRETARY TO THE BOARD OF REGENTS BE ACCEPTED EFFECTIVE AUGUST 23, 1958. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and was carried unanimously.

EMPLOYMENT OF PATSY ROWLAND APPROVED.

Upon the recommendation of the President, Mr. Mitchell made the motion that the Board approve the employment of Patsy Rowland as Secretary to the President effective August 24, 1958. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and the roll was called on its adoption with the following results: Mr. White, aye; Mr. Doran, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; and Dr. Martin, aye.

Patsy Rowland to Serve as Secretary of the Board of Regents.

Motion was made by Mr. Mitchell that Miss Patsy Rowland be elected to serve as Secretary of the Board of Regents of Murray State College succeeding Pat McNeely, effective August 24, 1958. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and was carried unanimously.

CHILLERS AND PUMPS TO BE INSTALLED IN THE STUDENT UNION BUILDING APPROVED.

In accordance with the status report of the Student Union Building given by the President in the Agenda, the Board authorized the President to proceed to obtain additional funds with which to have the chillers and pumps installed in the Student "Union Building before construction is completed. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and the roll was called on its adoption with the following results: Mr. White, aye; Mr. Doran, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; and Dr. Martin, aye.

APPLICATION FOR 1959 SUMMER INSTITUTE IN THE SCIENCES APPROVED.

Motion was made by Mr. Doran that the Board approve the action of the President in making application to the National Science Foundation for a 1959 Summer Institute in the Sciences. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and was carried unanimously.

REPORT ON MENIS DORMITORY.

Motion was made by Mr. Mitchell that the Board authorize the President to proceed with the application for a loan from the Housing and Home Finance Agency in the amount of \$600,000 and that the President be authorized to sign any and all documents necessary to obtain the loan. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and the roll was called on its adoption with the following results: Mr. White, aye; Mr. Doran, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; and Dr. Martin, aye.

REPORT ON INSURANCE.

DR. Woods reported that two schools in Kentucky have group insurance available for students, the University of Louisville and St. Joseph Prep School; however, many colleges in other states have such a plan. The insurance is optional as far as the students are concerned. The President then presented the plan to the Board as offered by the Continental Casualty Company of Chicago through Purdom and Thurman Insurance Agency of Murray, Kentucky.

A PROPOSAL FOR GROUP ACCIDENT AND SICKNESS INSURANCE FOR THE STUDENTS OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE

NEED:

Insurance for students differs from other types of group insurance only in that this age group, heretofore, has found such coverage impossible to purchase. It has been only during the past few years that students have come into their own as members of a group to which protection is now offered.

During his early life; the student enjoyed insurance protection and security while living as a dependent within the family group. Although personally unaware of the significance of such protection, he was, nevertheless, insured under the family hospitalization policy. In a few years, when he begins his own business life, he may secure similar coverage through the company for which he works.

For many years the student has been neglected in his uncomfortable' position between two well-defined theatres of insurance operation. He ceases to be a dependent, under the terms of most family plans, when he reaches the age of 18. Family protection is then lost to him. But he is not ready to go forward with his own business career, and for that reason, no type of occupational group insurance can be secured. This type of coverage is made available at a price much less than if the student purchased individual coverage. It was only a few years ago that this need was clearly seen and action was taken to satisfy it.

It is during this learning period, when expenses are unusually high and protection against the threat of accident and sickness is vitally needed, that a student group insurance plan assumes major importance. No longer forgotten, the college student is offered the finest insurance available to assure him of the best in medical care, wherever and whenever a disability may occur.

THIS, THEN, IS STUDENT INSURANCE. PROTECTION FOR THE SCHOLASTIC YEARS..... BRIDGING THE GAP BETWEEN FAMILY AND CAREER.....LEADING TO COMPLETE PROTECTION THROUGH LIFE.

COVERAGE:

The plan protects full time students (10 hours or more) of Murray State College at home, at school or while traveling; 24 hours a day throughout the school year, or calendar year, depending upon the plan selected by the student.

- 1. The effective and termination dates of this policy include three days travel time to school immediately preceding registration provided premium or application has been submitted prior to the student leaving home, and three days travel time returning from school immediately following the date of the last final examination, or the commencement exercises of the student if he is the traditional to participate in said exercises.
 - 2. Protection is in effect during all interim vacation periods.
 - 3. Participation in all athletic activities, other than interscholastic football are covered except: for eirst aid treatment.

BENEFITS:

ACCIDENT

When a student requires medical services because of accident, the insuring company will pay the actual cost incurred within 26 weeks from the date of accident—up to 26 weeks from the date of accident—up to \$500.00 for each accident—regardless of what other coverages you may have. Payment is unallocated, the plan will pay for any or ALL of the following.

- 1. Medical and surgical treatment by a physician
- 2. Hospital confinement and nurse's services
- 3. MISCELLANEOUS HOSPITAL EXPENSES DRUGS, MEDICINES, ETC.
- 4. DENTAL TREATMENT MADE NECESSARY BY INJURY TO NATURAL TEETH
- 5. Ambulance expense

SICKNESS

When an insured student requires medical services because of sickness the insuring company will pay for such services according to the following schedule:

1.	Hospital (not infirmary room and board), maximum of 30 days per any one sickness each day up to	\$ 12.00
2.	Miscellaneous expense while confined in hospital (not infirm ary), including: operating room, anesthetics, anesthetistis fee, drugs, medicines, x-rays, oxygen tent, dressing, and laboratory tests, up to	50.00
3.	Surgeon's fees for operations due to a sickness up to \$225.00 per operation according to policy schedule to be on file at the student health service	
4.	Doctoris visits for non-surgical cases, \$3.00 per visit for visits to patients confined in a hospital, to a limit each sickness of	90.00
5.	VISITS TO DOCTOR FOR NON-CONFINING ILLNESS (FIRST VISIT OUT) \$3.00 per visit. Maximum of	90.00
6.	Out-patient miscellaneous of \$10.00 per visit to doctor for medicines, shots, etc. prescribed by doctor. Maximum of	100.00
7.	Special nurse service during a period of hospital confinement for which expense is payable under hospital room and board provision per day, \$8.00 maximum each sickness of	100.00
8.	Ambulance expense for travel directly to or from a hospital for confinement, each sickness up to	10.00

COST:

\$15.00 PER STUDENT FOR SCHOOL YEAR (9 MONTHS)
\$20.00 PER STUDENT FOR CALENDAR YEAR (12 MONTHS)

ADMINISTRATION:

ALL ADMINISTRATION PROCEDURE SUCH AS BILLING AND COLLECTION, CLAIMS HANDLING, KEEPING OF RECORDS, ETC. WILL BE HANDLED BY THE LOCAL CORRESPONDENT, MR. JOHN N. PURDOM,

MURRAY, KENTUCKY. THE ONLY THING WHICH IS REQUIRED OF THE COLLEGE IS A LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT WHICH IS TO BE COPIED AND MAILED BY THE LOCAL CORRESPONDENT TO THE PARENTS OF EACH, STUDENT. THE LETTER TO BE APPROVED BY THE PRESIDENT WILL SIMPLY STATE THAT THE COLLEGE IS MAKING THIS PLAN AVAILABLE ON A VOLUNTARY BASIS AND THAT THE STUDENT MAY PARTICIPATE IF HE DESIRES. IT WILL ALSO STATE THAT THIS LETTER IS NOT A LETTER OF SOLICITATION AND THAT THE COLLEGE DOES NOT PROFIT FROM THIS PLAN IN ANY WAY.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. DORAN THAT THE PRESIDENT BE AUTHORIZED IN KEEPING WITH THE LAST PARAGRAPH ENTITLED "ADMINISTRATION" TO WRITE A LETTER GIVING PURDOM AND THURMAN PERMISSION TO CONTACT STUDENTS AND PARENTS REGARDING THE GROUP INSURANCE AVAILABLE TO STUDENTS THROUGH THE CONTINENTAL CASUALTY COMPANY OF CHICAGO, ILLINOIS. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. MITCHELL AND IT WAS CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

REPORT OF THE THOMAS P. NORRIS STUDENT LOAN FUND APPROVED.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. WHITE THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT THE REPORT OF THE THOMAS P. Norris Student Loan Fund. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and was carried unanimously.

Annual Report of the President, which includes the Annual Report of the Business Manager, Approved.

THE PRESIDENT SUBMITTED HIS ANNUAL REPORT WHICH ALSO INCLUDED THE REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER.

THE PRESIDENT'S ANNUAL REPORT

FOR

FISCAL YEAR 1957-58

Board of Regents Murray State College Murray, Kentucky

GENTLEMEN:

I AM SUBMITTING HEREWITH THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT.

1957-58 has been a successful year for Murray State College as will be pointed out more specifically in this report.

ENROLLMENT

THE ENROLLMENT BY SEMESTER FOR THE YEAR 1957-58 WAS AS FOLLOWS:

<u>Regular Stu</u>	egular Students		Special_	TOTAL_
	MEN	WOMEN	(Spec., Unclass., Vis., Irreg.)	
College 1957-58	1581	1034	53	2668
FIRST SEMESTER	1382	891	36	2 30 9
SECOND SEMESTER	1372	880	28	2280
SUMMER SCHOOL	669	760	57	1486

During the year 1957-58, including the summer school of 1957, 3257 different students-1834 men, 1423 women--were enrolled.

During the year 1957-58, not including the summer school of 1958, 2668 different students--1605 men, 1063 women--were enrolled.

THE 1958 SUMMER SCHOOL ENROLLMENT US 1486. THE ENROLLMENT FOR THE SUMMER OF 1957, WAS 1252. DURING THE SUMMER OF 1957, THERE WERE 542 MEN STUDENTS ENROLLED. THIS SUMMER THERE ARE 703 MEN STUDENTS ENROLLED.

During the summer school of 1958, we have a total of 330 graduate students enrolled, as compared with 288 graduate students in the summer school of 1957.

Special Courses

Under the direction of Mr. Esco Gunter

Under the direction of Dr. Liza Spann

HISTORY G207, RECENT AMERICAN HISTORY, 3 SEMESTER	HOURS, 8-5-578-24-57	
Under the direction of Dr. Frank Steely	TOTAL ENROLLED	13
ENGLISH 205, CLASSICAL AND NORSE MYTHOLOGY, 3 SEME	STER HOURS, 8-5-57-8-24-57	
Under the direction of Mr. Gerhard Megow	TOTAL ENROLLED	13
GEOLOGY 229, HISTORICAL GEOLOGY, 3 SEMESTER HOURS,	8-5-578-24-57	
Under the direction of Dr. Pete Panzera	TOTAL ENROLLED	30
Home Economics 235, ELEMENTARY NUTRITION, 3 SEMES	TER HOURS, 8-5-578-24-57	
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF MISS BETTY LIGON	TOTAL ENROLLED	44
EDUCATION G250, AUDIO-VISUAL AIDS, 3 SEMESTER HOUR	s, 8-5-578-24-57	

SATURDAY CLASSES

BIOLOGY 108, HUMAN ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY, 4 SEMESTER HOURS, 8-5-57-8-30-57

TOTAL ENROLLED

TOTAL ENROLLED

9 .

FIRST SEMESTER 1957-58 TOTAL	ENROLLED	SECOND SEMESTER 1957-58 TOTAL	ENROLLED
Music 124A, Materials, Methods, Grades 1 - 6	40	Education 328, Guidance	52
Education 210, Teaching Social Studies	41	Education 310, Advanced Teaching of Reading	16
Science 101, Physical Science for Elementary Teachers	26	Education 227, Child Psychology	28
Education 324, School Adm.: Business, Legal	54	GEOLOGY 229, HISTORICAL GEOLOGY	25
CHEMISTRY 311A, INORGANIC CHEMISTRY	15	LIBRARY SCIENCE 205B REFERENCE MATERIALS	22
English 205, Mythology	23	ART 215A, ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Methods	38
English 111, Introduction to Literature	29	English 112, Introduction to Literature	20
GEOGRAPHY 213, GEOGRAPHY OF EUROPE	13	Education G209, Teaching of Science	56
LIBRARY SCIENCE 201A, ADM. OF SCHOOL LIBRARIES	21	Education 200, Adolescent Psychology	.24
Education 127, Child Growth and Development	27	Sociology 101A, Introduction to Sociology	15

EVENING CLASSES

FIRST SEMESTER 1957-58 TOTAL ENROLLED	Second Semester 1957-58	TOTAL ENROLLED
Education 324, Sch. Adm., 45 Business, Legal Aspects	ART 215A, ELEMENTARY School Methods	14
Business 107, Principles 9 of Accounting I	Education 322, Sch. Admn. Finance	35
	Education 328, Guidance	26

TRAINING SCHOOL

The enrollment in the Murray State College Training School at the beginning of the year 1957-58, was 500 and at the end of the year 516.

NURSING EDUCATION

There were 58 freshmen nurses enrolled September, 1957. Capping exercises were held on February 21, 1958, at which 48 nursing education students were capped.

There were 29 nursing diplomas issued, 13 with Jennie Stuart Memorial Hospital, Hopkinsville, Kentucky, and 16 with Owensboro-Daviess County Hospital, Owensboro, Kentucky.

SCHOLARSHIP OF STUDENTS

During the first semester, 103 students made a perfect standing and 109 during the second semester.

During the first semester, 364 students made the Honor Roll, that is a standing of 2.2 or better out of a possible 3.00 or 3.4 or better out of a possible 4.00, during the second semester—(as to date not available).

DEGREES GRANTED

Since July 1, 1957, degrees have been conferred upon 381 students. The distribution of degrees is as follows:

A. B.	37
B. S.	224
B. Music	0
B. S. IN HOME Ec.	19
B. S. IN AGRICULTURE	14
B. of Music Education	13
M. A. IN EDUCATION	<u>_74</u>
Total	381

In addition to the above, approximately 168 people will receive the Bacheloris Degree and 21 will receive the Masteris Degree at the close of the present summer school.

Since the founding of the institution 4827 Bachelor Degrees have been granted and 450 Master of Arts in Education Degrees have been granted.

STUDY CENTERS

During the year 1957-58 study centers were held. These study centers were taught by regular members of the faculty. The phace, date, subject, credit hours, instructor, and the enrollment in each course was as follows:

IN EACH COOKS	E MAS AS TOLLOWS.		CREDIT		
Place	<u>Date</u>	Subject	Hours	NSTRUCTOR	ENROLLMENT
PADUCAH	8-5-578-23-57	Education G252	3 seм.	ROBERT ALSUP	27
HENDERSON	8-5-578-23-57	EDUCATION G235	3 sем.	HARRY SPARKS	49
MADISONVILLE	8-5-578-27-57	EDUCATION G209	3 sem.	RUBIE E. SMITH	45
PADUCAH	9-27-571-24-58	Education 127	3 бем.	MAC G. MCRANEY	16

Place	<u>Date</u>	S ubject	CREDIT Hours	Instructor	ENROLLMENT
Hopkinsville	: 10-31-571:-22-58	EDUCATION G235	3 seм.	W. G. Nash	26
CADIZ	10-29-571-23-58	Music 124A	3 sem.	Josiah Darnall	16
Outwood	10-9-571-29-58	English 102	3 ѕем.	C. T. PETERSON	18
PADUCAH	2-3-585-12-58	Education 210	3 seм.	ROBERT F. ALSUP	24
CAMDEN, TEN	n. 3-27 - 585 - 28 - 58	Education G281	3 ѕем.	D. B. HUNTER	31
Outwood	2-19-585-28-58	English 111	3 ѕем.	C. T. PETERSON	· 17
LONE OAK	2-10-586-9-58	Physics G231	3 ѕем.	WILLIAM G. READ	<u>_15</u>
		TOTAL ENBOLLMEN	т FROM 7-1-	-57 to 6-30-58	284

 Undergraduates
 206

 Graduates
 63

 Audit
 15

 Total Enrollment
 284

CORRESPONDENCE COURSES

The report of correspondence enrollments and courses for the fiscal year July 1, 1957, to June 30, 1958, is as follows:

Active enrollment as of 6-29-57	654	
New enrollment 7-1-57 through 6-30-58	<u> 761</u>	
TOTAL ENROLLMENT SERVICED DURING	YEAR	1,415
Courses dropped 7-1-57 through 6-30-58	39	
Courses inactive on 6-30-58	149	
Courses completed 7-1-57 through 6-30-58	<u>551</u>	
		<u>739</u>
Active enrollment as of 6-30-58		676

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES OF THE FACULTY

DEAN OF THE COLLEGE

DR. WILLIAM G. NASH, DEAN OF THE COLLEGE, HAS REPRESENTED KENTUCKY ON THE SENATE OF THE NATIONAL BETA CLUB, AN HONOR ORGANIZATION FOR HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS. HE HAS SERVED AS A MEMBER OF THE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE OF THE OHIO VALLEY CONFERENCE.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE IS CONTINUING TO DO A SPLENDID JOB OF INSTRUCTION AND THE DEPARTMENT UNDER THE DIRECTION OF PROFESSOR A. CARMAN HAS EFFECTIVELY OPERATED THE COLLEGE FARM BOTH FROM STANDPOINT OF A LABORATORY FOR THE STUDENTS ON THE CAMPUS AND AS AN EXAMPLE OF GOOD FARMING FOR THE FARMERS OF WESTERN KENTUCKY.

Professor A. Carman, Head of the Department of Agriculture has continued to serve as Secretary-Treasurer of the Kentucky Jersey Cattle Club. He has served as editor of Kentucky Jerseys (a yearbook published by the Kentucky Jersey Cattle Club); he appeared on the program of the American Jersey Cattle Club at its most recent meeting in Columbus, Ohio. He has served as member and chairman of the All Jersey Milk Committee of Kentucky; a director of the Kentucky Agricultural Council; a member who has served on a number of committees of the Calloway County Farm Bureau. He is also a life member of the American Jersey Cattle Club.

PROFESSOR E. B. HOWTON HAS SERVED AS A MEMBER OF THE EXAMINING BOARD FOR CREAMERY, TESTERS, AND SAMPLERS LICENSE LAW OF KENTUCKY; A MEMBER OF THE KENTUCKY FARM BUREAU DAIRY COMMITTEE; A MEMBER OF KENTUCKY JERSEY SIRE SELECTION COMMITTEE FOR K.A.B.A.; SECRETARY FOR MARSHALL—CALLOWAY ARTIFICIAL BREEDING COOP.; DIRECTOR OF MARSHALL—CALLOWAY ASSOCIATION BREEDING COOP.; SECRETARY AND TREASURER OF PURCHASE PARISH JERSEYS; OFFICIAL JUDGE FOR KENTUCKY DAIRY CATTLE SHOWS; A MEMBER OF KENTUCKY BRUCELLOSIS COMMITTEE.

PROFESSOR ARLIE SCOTT HAS SERVED AS CHAIRMAN OF THE BEEF CATTLE COMMITTEE FOR THE PURCHASE DISTRICT FAIR. HE HAS JUDGED BEEF CATTLE AT SHOWS AND OR FAIRS AT BENTON, CADIZ, CLINTON, RUSSELLVILLE, STURGIS, PRINCETON, AND MURRAY. HE ALSO JUDGED SHEEP AT THE CADIZ FAIR AND JUDGED SWINE AT HOPKINSVILLE, MADISONVILLE, RUSSELLVILLE, STURGIS, MURRAY AND AT

THE KENTUCKY STATE FAIR. HE MADE A NUMBER OF ADDRESSES, ONE TO THE GRAVES COUNTY BEEF CATTLE FIELD DAY AND ANOTHER TO THE GRAVES COUNTY SWINE PRODUCERS FIELD DAY. HE ALSO MADE AN ADDRESS TO THE WESTERN KENTUCKY DISTRICT ABERDEEN ANGUS FIELD DAY AND THE KENTUCKY ANGUS SWEEPSTAKES IN LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY.

Professor Robert Hendon has spoken to civic clubs and has served as a judge in the F. F. A. subdistrict field days held at Clinton and Princeton, Kentucky.

DEPARTMENT OF BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

DR. A. M. HARVILL WAS ADDED TO THE FACULTY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES AT THE BEGINNING OF THE FALL SEMESTER OF 1957. DR. HARVILL HAS A BACHELOR AND MASTERIS DEGREE FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF KENTUCKY AND HIS PH.D. FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN. HE IS AN EXPERIENCED TEACHER HAVING TAUGHT FIVE YEARS OR MORE AT THE UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA AND MOST RECENTLY AT THE AMERICAN UNIVERSITY IN CAIRO, EGYPT.

DR. A. M. Wolfson, Head of the Department of Biological Sciences, has served as past president and member of the Executive Committee of the Kentucky Academy of Science during the year 1957–58.

DR. HANCOCK HAS SERVED AS PRESIDENT OF THE KENTUCKY ORNITHOLOGICAL SOCIETY AND PRESIDED OVER THE SPRING MEETING AT BOWLING GREEN IN APRIL 1958. THROUGH DR. HANCOCK'S EFFORTS A GRANT WAS OBTAINED FROM THE SPORT FISHING INSTITUTE WITH WHICH TO INITIATE LIMNOLOGICAL RESEARCH IN KENTUCKY LAKE LOOKING FORWARD TO THE POSSIBILITY OF INTRODUCING THE STRIPED BASS, ROCCUS SAXITILIS, IN KENTUCKY LAKE.

Dr. Liza Spann and Mr. C. Wesley Kemper of the Department of Biological Sciences have continued to do a splendid job of teaching.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS.

DR. THOMAS B. HOGANCAMP, PROFESSOR AND HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT, COMPLETED HIS DOCTOR'S DISSERTATION IN AUGUST 1957 AND RECEIVED HIS DOCTOR'S DEGREE IN SEPTEMBER. THE TITLE OF HIS DISSERTATION IS: A COMPREHENSIVE ANALYSIS AND SYNTHESIS OF RESEARCH FINDINGS AND THOUGHT ON BUSINESS TEACHER EDUCATION. HIS DISSERTATION CONSISTED OF 503 PAGES AND ABSTRACTS OF THE DISSERTATION HAVE BEEN AND ARE BEING PUBLISHED IN SEVERAL PROFESSIONAL PUBLICATIONS. DR. HOGANCAMP CONDUCTED A SALES TRAINING INSTITUTE AT MAYFIELD, KENTUCKY, IN COOPERATION WITH THE MAYFIELD ROTARY CLUB AND THE MAYFIELD RETAIL MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION. HE APPEARED ON THE PROGRAM AT THE SOUTHERN BUSINESS EDUCATION ASSOCIATION CONFERENCE IN LOUISVILLE AND WAS ELECTED AND IS SERVING AS VICE—PRESIDENT OF THE COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY SECTION OF THE SOUTHERN BUSINESS EDUCATION ASSOCIATION; AND A MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE SOUTHERN BUSINESS EDUCATION ASSOCIATION. HE ALSO APPEARED ON THE PROGRAM OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR BUSINESS TEACHER EDUCATION CONFERENCE IN CHICAGO IN FEBRUARY OF 1958. IN ADDITION TO THE FOREGOING ACTIVITIES, HE GAVE COMMENCEMENT AND OTHER ADDRESSES DURING THE YEAR.

Professor Vernon Anderson has served as Treasurer of the Southern Business Education Association during the 1957–58 year. He also served as faculty adviser for Sigma Lambda Iota, a honorary business administration fraternity. He attended professional meetings in Louisville and other cities.

Mr. Fred Gingles carried out his duties as teacher in the Department of Business with primary interest on accounting.

Mr. Esco Gunter was elected Chairman of the Business Education Section of the First District Education Association. In addition to his teaching in the Department, he has also conducted the workshop in the Techniques of Teaching Conservation.

Mrs. Verda Happy has served as faculty sponsor of the Local Chapter of Pi Omega Pi, a national honorary business educational fraternity during the 1957-58 school year.

Mrs. Kathryn Carman was added to the Business Department faculty at the beginning of the fall term and has carried out her instructional responsibilities in a most effective manner.

Mr. George Ligon has done a good job of teaching and attended conferences in Murray and Louisville and Bloomington, Indiana.

Miss June Ann Moore did an excellent job teaching and served as faculty sponsor of the Business Club during the 1957–58 school year. Miss Moore resigned her position at the end of the spring semester in order to be married.

PROFESSOR JOHNNY REAGAN WHO TAUGHT IN THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION WILL TEACH IN THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS DURING THE 1958-59 SCHOOL YEAR. ALSO, MR. V. W. PARKER HAS BEEN ADDED TO THE DEPARTMENT FOR THE 1958-59 SCHOOL YEAR. HE IS A SPECIALIST IN ACCOUNTING. HE COMES TO MURRAY STATE FROM ALABAMA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE. THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS HAS MORE STUDENTS ENROLLED THAT ANY OTHER DEPARTMENT ON THE CAMPUS. MORE THAN 1450 STUDENTS WERE ENROLLED FOR THIS DEPARTMENT DURING THE SECOND SEMESTER.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

DR. HARRY M. SPARKS, HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, HAS SERVED AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KENTUCKY ASSOCIATION FOR SUPERVISION AND CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT; CHAIRMAN OF THE KENTUCKY COMMISSION ON TEPS; PRESIDENT ELECT OF KENTUCKY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION; AND MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEA.

During the year he made 11 addresses to local and district educational associations; 12 commencement addresses; 3 addresses to high school assemblies; and 22 addresses to business and service clubs. He has served as a special consultant in 7 workshops.

DR. ROBERT F. ALSUP HAS HAD AN ARTICLE PUBLISHED IN THE KENTUCKY SCHOOL JOURNAL ENTITLED, "THE TEAM APPROACH TO READING." HE HAS ORGANIZED READING PROGRAMS IN BALLARD COUNTY, McCracken County, Marshall, County, Carlisle County, and Calloway County. He also assisted the city school system of Carothersville, Missouri, with a program in reading. He set up a similar program in East Prairie, Missouri. He conducted a reading workshop for the Henderson City Schools and served as consultant to the Hopkinsville City Schools as well as consultant for six additional workshops. He has worked with a number of PTA organizations and has taken the lead in organizing the elementary principals of the First District. He has worked with the supervisors of the First and Second Educational Districts. Dr. Alsup is an outstanding authority in the field of reading and his efforts are Bearing fruit in the area, served by Murray State College.

Dr. R. B. Parsons, in addition to carrying his regular teaching load, served as faculty adviser to Kappa Delta Pi, a national honorary educational fraternity, and Delta Alpha, a local fraternity for men.

Miss Rubie Smith was granted a leave of absence last fall to spend a year at George-Peabody College in Nashville, Tennessee. She returned to the college in June and is carrying on in her usual effective manner.

Dr. Don Hunter was added to the faculty in the Department of Education at the beginning of the fall semester and has contributed significantly to the department. Among his responsibilities have been that of supervisor of the off-campus student teaching program.

Professor Edward Brunner, in addition to his teaching responsibilities, has made a number of addresses, one to the Parents and Teachers of Caldwell County on the subject of developing a guidance program. He has also served as a member of the committee whose responsibility it was to develop a state guidance handbook.

DEPARTMENT OF FINE ARTS

PROFESSOR RICHARD FARRELL HAS SERVED EFFECTIVELY AS HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT OF FINE ARTS FOR THE 1957-58 YEAR. PROFESSOR FARRELL HAS GIVEN SPECIAL EMPHASIS TO CONTACTING HIGH SCHOOLS STUDENTS THROUGHOUT THE YEAR. HE REPRESENTED MURRAY STATE AT THE KENTUCKY. MUSIC TEACHERS ASSOCIATION AT LEXINGTON. HE ALSO REPRESENTED THE COLLEGE AT THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS OF MUSIC AND ALSO THE MIDWEST BAND CLINIC AT CHICAGO. WHILE IN CHICAGO HE HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO MEET WITH 31 GRADUATES OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE AND HELP TO ORGANIZE A MURRAY ALUMNI CHAPTER IN THE CHICAGO AREA, HE SERVED AS ADJUDICATOR FOR THE REGIONAL MUSIC FESTIVALS AT MADISONVILLE; JOHNSTON CITY, ILLINOIS; TUSCALOOSA, ALABAMA; AND EFFINGHAM, ILLINOIS. HE CONDUCTED THE COLLEGE SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA IN FOUR PUBLIC APPEARANCES DURING THE YEAR. HE HAS BEEN VERY INTERESTED IN ESTABLISHING A CONCERT AND LECTURE SERIES ON THE CAMPUS OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE.

The 1957-58 school year has been a full and productive year for the Fine Arts Department. The Dramatics Division of the Department of Fine Arts, under the direction of Mr. Thomas Gregory, has produced three major dramatic productions plus an evening of one act plays and a Children's Theatre production co-sponsored with the local Chapter of the A. A. U. W. More than 3300 children attended the three performances of the Children's Theatre. Attendance and interest in the major dramatic productions has not been as great as it should be during the past two years. Mr. Robert Johnson who is completing his work for the doctor's degree at the University of Indiana has been employed to teach Dramatics and we hope that his efforts will bear much fruit.

THE DIVISION OF MUSIC IN THE DEPARTMENT OF FINE ARTS HAS CARRIED ON A FULL SESSION OF CONCERTS AND RECITALS FOR THE COMMUNITY AND CAMPUS.

Paul Shahan who was added to the faculty in 1957 has done an outstanding job. He has written and had the following published:

- 1. "Spectrums" composition for large Brass Choir with percussion.
 Published by Robert King, N. Easton, Mass.
- 2. "Morocco" _ composition for full Symphony Orchestra. Published by Rochester Publishing Company, Rochester, N. Y.
- 3. "Leipzig Towers" composed for large Brass Choir with percussion. Published by Robert King, N. Easton, Mass.
- 4. "Spring Festival" for Symphonic Band. Published by Summy-Birchard Company, Chicago, Illinois.

In addition to his teaching, writing, and have compositions published, he has served as Band adjudicator for the Band Festival at Johnson City, Illinois, and at the Regional Music Festival at Murray State College. He represented Murray State at the Midwest National Band Clinic at Chicago, Illinois. He had charge of the marching bands at all football games, conducted the Brass Choir in his original composition, "The City of David" Ifor the Christmas convocation program, conducted the Brass Choir over WPSD television station and conducted the concert band in three series at Murray State College.

PROFESSOR ROMAN PRYDATKEVYTCH HAS AN ARTICLE PUBLISHED ENTITLED, "VIOLINIST ELIZABETH SHCHEDVOVYTCH-HANKEVYTCH." HE GAVE A VIOLIN RECITAL AT NEW HAVEN, CONNECTICUT, AND IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS. IN ADDITION TO APPEARING IN RECITALS AND CONCERTS AT MURRAY STATE COLLEGE, HE HAS GIVEN AT LEAST FIVE RECITALS IN OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY. HE COMPOSED "ETERNAL LIFE" (PRAYER OF ST. FRANCIS) WHICH HAS ITS FIRST PERFORMANCE IN JUNE 1958.

Professor David J. Gowans in addition to his teaching duties has made three appearances with the Faculty String Quartet and has conducted the String Orchestra in two concerts. He served as adjudicator for the Regional Music Festival at Murray State College.

Professor Lawrence G. Rickert appeared on three television shows from WPSD, TV; directed and participated in two productions of Chamber Operas at Murray State College. He sang recitals in Mayfield, Fulton, Paris, and at Murray.

PROFESSOR ROBERT BAAR ACTED AS ADJUDICATOR FOR THE REGIONAL MUSIC FESTIVAL AT MADISONVILLE, KENTUCKY, MURRAY, AND BENTON, ILLINOIS. HE ALSO SERVED AS STATE ADJUDICATOR AT THE MEETING HELD AT LEXINGTON. HE CONDUCTED THE QUAD-STATE FESTIVAL AT MURRAY; FRANKLIN COUNTY FESTIVAL AT ST. CLAIRE, MISSOURI; SOUTHERN ILLINOIS JUNIOR HIGH FESTIVAL AT MARION, ILLINOIS; ALL-DAVIDSON COUNTY TENNESSEE CHORUS AT DONALDSON, TENNESSEE; ALL-NASHVILLE SCHOOL CHORUS AT NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE; MADISON COUNTY FESTIVAL AT HIGHLAND, ILLINOIS, HE CONDUCTED THE A CAPPELLA CHOIR IN CONCERTS AS FOLCOWS: KEA CONVENTION GENERAL MEETING, KEA LUNCHEON; WHAS - RADIO; WHAS - TELEVISION; CHICAGO, ILLINOIS; LAPORTE, INDIANA; CARMI, ILLINOIS; HERRIN, ILLINOIS; EFFINGHAM, ILLINOIS; ANNA, ILLINOIS; HARRISBURG, ILLINOIS - TELEVISION; FULTON, KENTUCKY; UNION CITY, TENNESSEE; MURRAY, KENTUCKY (3).

PROFESSOR R. W. TERHUNE PARTICIPATED IN PROGRAMS OVER TELEVISION STATION WPSD, TV, PADUCAH, KENTUCKY; ASSISTED IN A CELLO RECITAL BY NEALE MASON, PERFORMED WITH THE FACULTY PIANO QUARTET; ASSISTED ROMAN PRYDATKEVYTCH IN ONE RECITAL AT MURRAY AND FIVE IN OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY, AND ONE AT BETHEL COLLEGE. HE WAS THE ACCOMPANIST FOR THE OPERA "THE TELEPHONE" AND SERVED AS THE ADJUDICATOR FOR THE REGIONAL MUSIC FESTIVAL AT MURRAY STATE COLLEGE.

PROFESSOR JOHN C. WINTER ACCOMPANIED AND PERFORMED AS ORGAN SOLOIST ON THREE TELEVISION SHOWS FROM WPSD, TV, IN PADUCAH; ACCOMPANIED PHI MU ALPHA, SINFONIA - LOUISIANA COVENTION CHOIR ON TELEVISION SHOW IN LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA; ACCOMPANIED A CAPPELLA AND BRASS CHOIRS IN CONVOCATION PROGRAM AT MURRAY STATE; ACCOMPANIED A CAPPELLA CHOIR ON SPRING TOUR (ORGAN); PRESENTED ORGAN RECITAL AT FIRST METHODIST CHURCH IN MAYFIELD, KENTUCKY; REPRESENTED MURRAY STATE COLLEGE AT K. M. T. A. CONVENTION IN LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY; PLAYED ORGAN AND PIANO SOLOS FOR CONVOCATION PROGRAM AT BETHEL COLLEGE IN MCKENZIE, TENNESSEE; PLAYED SOLOS AND ACCOMPANIED MR. RICKERT IN RECITAL AT PARIS, TENNESSEE; PLAYED JOINT VOICE-ORGAN RECITAL AT MURRAY METHODIST CHURCH; AND FURNISHED MUSIC FOR NUMEROUS OTHER PROGRAMS THROUGHOUT THE YEAR.

PROFESSOR NEALE B. MASON SERVED AS SECRETARY—TREASURER OF MURRAY CHAPTER OF A.A.U.P. He presented a Cello Recital at Murray State; participated in two Faculty String Quartet Concerts, and appeared with this organization for various banquets and receptions.

DIVISION OF ART

THE DIVISION OF ART HAS HAD A MOST SUCCESSFUL YEAR. ENROLLMENTS HAVE INCREASED. A LABORATORY FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL ART HAS BEEN SET UP OVER THE MAINTENANCE SHOP. PAINTING OF WALLS, MAKING CURTAINS, AND REFINISHING OLD TABLES AND CHAIRS WAS DONE BY THE STUDENTS THEMSELVES. A FULL PROGRAM OF EXHIBITIONS HAVE BEEN ARRANGED AND CARRIED OUT DURING THE YEAR. FOUR SPECIAL EXHIBITS OF PAINTING AND CERAMICS ART HAVE BEEN BROUGHT TO OUR CAMPUS THROUGH THE COURTESY OF THE ARTISTS, THE FORD MOTOR COMPANY. TEN SENIOR EXHIBITS HAVE BEEN SHOWN. THE SECOND ANNUAL ALUMNI INVITATIONAL EXHIBITION WAS HELD AT HOMECOMING. ART STUDENTS HAVE SUCCESSFULLY COMPETED IN PROFESSIONAL COMPETITION AT THE FOLLOWING SHOWS: AMERICAN COLLEGE PHOTOGRAPHY ANNUAL; KENTUCKY STATE FAIR; KENTUCKY WESLEYAN OPEN; EVANSVILLE REGIONAL; LOUISVILLE ART CENTER ANNUAL, HUNTINGTON, W. VIRGINIA, INVITATIONAL; AND LOUISVILLE JUNIOR GALLERY. THE DIVISION OF ART WAS EFFECTIVELY REPRESENTED AT THE BI-ANNUAL MEETING OF WESTERN ARTS IN LOUISVILLE. COLORED SLIDES OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE CAMPUS AND COLLEGE LIFE FORMED A PORTION OF THE SHOW. WE ARE INFORMED THAT MURRAY STATE'S EXHIBIT WAS THE BEST COLLEGE EXHIBIT AT THE CONFERENCE.

MISS CLARA M. EAGLE PARTICIPATED IN THE PROGRAM OF THE SOUTHEASTERN COLLEGE ARTS CONFERENCE IN ATHENS, GEORGIA. SHE SERVED AS JUDGE OF THE KENTUCKY ART DIVISION OF THE KENTUCKY STATE FAIR; SERVED ON THE COMMITTEE TO IMPROVE THE FINE ARTS IN THE KENTUCKY STATE DIVISION OF ART; PLANNED AND CARRIED OUT ONE TELEVISION PROGRAM ASSISTED BY ART STUDENTS. MISS EAGLE ALSO SPONSORED KAPPA PI, HONORARY ART FRATERNITY.

Professor William Boaz participated in the Kentucky Wesleyan Annual Art Exhibition at Owensboro and also has paintings hung in the library and Home Economics Department at Murray State College. He has served as Secretary—Treasurer of the Kentucky Art Education Association; has served as a member of the Evaluation Committee at the Southeastern Arts Convention, Tampa, Florida. He has served as Chairman of the Research Committee, College Section, of Southeastern Arts.

Professor William Walmsley, in addition to his teaching duties, attended the Southeastern Arts Conference in Athens, Georgia, and had exhibits in a number of shows.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION

PROFESSOR ROY STEWART, HEAD OF DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND ATHLETIC DIRECTOR, HAS SERVED EFFECTIVELY AS HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT AND DIRECTOR OF THE ATHLETIC PROGRAM. HE IS SERVING AS PRESIDENT OF THE OHIO VALLEY CONFERENCE.

Professor Rex Alexander asked to be relieved as Head Coach and further asked to devote his time to teaching and as assistant Basketball Coach. He served as President of Kentucky Association of Health, Physical Education, and Recreation. Mr. Alexander wrote a weekly newspaper article during basketball season, represented the Department in a number of high school career conferences, and has spoken to a number of high school groups.

Professor Jim Cullivan has done an effective job of teaching and serving as football coach. He has spoken twelve or more times to high schools, civic groups, and other organizations.

Mr. W. W. Ferguson has served as Assistant Football Coach, Head Track Coach, and has carried his regular load as teacher.

Mrs. Carrie Allison White and Miss Nita Graham have done an effective job of teaching a full program in Health and Physical Education.

Cal Luther became a member of the faculty July 1, and will teach and serve as Head Basketball Coach.

KEN MILLER WILL BECOME A MEMBER OF THE FACULTY AUGUST 15.

DEPARTMENT OF HOME ECONOMICS

During each of the two semesters approximately 350 students were enrolled in the Department of Home Economics. An effective program of oef-campus student teaching was developed--centered in Russellville and Nortonville. The Head of the Department of Home Economics visited each student teacher twice during the nine weeks while they were off campus. The comments of the students who did off-campus teaching were most favorable. A meeting involving the Home Economics staff and supervising teachers was held at Murray, and it is hoped that such meetings may be held once each semester. The members of the Home Economics staff have endeavored to encourage well qualified students to major in Home Economics.

THE HOME ECONOMICS CLUB IS GIVING A \$100 SCHOLARSHIP. FOURTEEN HIGH SCHOOL SENIORS APPLIED FOR THE SCHOLARSHIP AND CAME TO THE CAMPUS FOR INTERVIEWS. MUCH TIME HAS BEEN SPENT IN EVALUATING AND REVISING THE CURRICULUM IN HOME ECONOMICS. TWENTY—SEVEN SENIORS WERE GRADUATED WITH A B. S. DEGREE IN HOME ECONOMICS DURING THE PAST YEAR. EIGHT OF THE TWENTY—SEVEN WERE GRADUATED WITH HONORS.

Miss Ruby Simpson, Professor and Head of the Department of Home Economics, is President Lect and Chairman of Program of Work of Kentucky Home Economics Association; is Vice-President of the Gamma Chapter of Delta Kappa Gamma; a member of the Program Committee of A. A. U. W.

Miss Frances Brown has done a splendid job in teaching and supervising the Home Management House. She is Chairman of the Newsletter Committee for Kentucky Home Economics Association.

Dr. Alta Presson has in addition to doing a splendid job of teaching, served as a member of the committee to evaluate the content of the course, "Nutrition for Elementary Teachers."

Mrs. Elizabeth Ordway, in addition to her regular teaching duties, has served as advisor to the Home Economics Club.

Miss Inez Haile, critic teacher in the Training School, has served as a member of the program planning committee, a member of the newsletter committee, and is chairman of the recruiting committee for the Home Economics Teacher Education Group.

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL ARTS

The enrollment in Industrial Arts continues to grow and an effective program of instruction has been carried out. The exhibit which is held each year at Commencement time is most attractive, and the teachers and students are to be heartly congratulated.

DR. H. L. OAKLEY, PROFESSOR AND HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL ARTS, HAS SERVED AS DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF COMMERCIAL EXHIBITS, KENTUCKY INDUSTRIAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION. HE HAS SERVED AS KENTUCKY DIRECTOR OF THE FORD MOTOR COMPANY, KENTUCKY INDUSTRIAL ARTS AWARD, DIRECTOR FOR KENTUCKY, AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL ARTS ASSOCIATION, AND HAS SERVED AS A MEMBER OF THE STATE COMMITTEE FOR INDUSTRIAL ARTS CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT. HE WAS THE FEATURED SPEAKER FOR THE MISSISSIPPI VALLEY INDUSTRIAL ARTS CONFERENCE IN CHICAGO.

Professor George Lilly, in addition to doing a fine 308 of teaching, has served as Vice President and Director of the Kentucky Industrial Education Association.

Professor Joe Cowin, in addition to his teaching duties, served as a panel member for the Southern Illinois Industrial Arts Association, Cairo, Illinois; and as judge and panel member for the Southern Illinois University Industrial Arts Exhibit and Workshop, Carbondale, Illinois.

Professor Paul Lynn served as panel member for the Southern Illinois Industrial Arts Association, Cairo, Illinois; and as a judge and panel member for the Southern Illinois University Industrial Arts Exhibit and Workshop, Carbondale, Illinois.

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE

THE DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE HAS MADE SIGNIFICANT GROWTH DURING THE YEAR. DR. GUY BATTLE, PROFESSOR AND HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT, SPOKE AT THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE KENTUCKY COUNCIL OF TEACHERS OF ENGLISH AT BOWLING GREEN, KENTUCKY, ON THE SUBJECT OF "TEACHING LITERATURE IN COLLEGE."

DR. EDWIN LARSON HAS SPOKEN TO A NUMBER OF GROUPS INCLUDING THE MAGAZINE CLUB OF MURRAY, AND HAS GIVEN OF HIS TIME TO THE MURRAY WRITING GROUP.

DR. SIDNEY P. Moss is a member of the Murray Branch of the AAUP, the Kentucky Council of Teachers of English and has published the following: "Poe and the Literary Cliques," American Book Collector, VII (June, 1957), 13–19. Review of Poe: A Critical Study by Edward H. Davidson to appear in Journal of English and Germanic Philology this July.

PROFESSOR CLELL T. PETERSON, IN ADDITION TO HIS REGULAR TEACHING DUTIES, HAS PUBLISHED THE FOLLOWING: "Spotting the Gothic Novel," The Graduate Student in English (Fall, 1957), 1:1, 12. "The Jack London Legend." The American Book Collector (January, 1958). VIII:5, 12–17. "The English Novel: A Short Bibliography." The Graduate Student in English (Spring, 1958), 1:3, 17–21. He also assisted in the bird census which was sponsored by the National Audubon Society.

Miss Beatrice Frye, in addition to her regular duties as a teacher, served as a panel member on the program of the Federated Woman's Club. The panel subject was "Socrates."

Mrs. Lillian Hollowell Adams, who has taught for many years at Murray State College and served most effectively, is retiring at the end of August. She will be Long remembered and will be appreciated as an author and as a great teacher.

MISS ONNIE SKINNER, MRS. MARYLEONA FROST, MR. ROBERT SORRELLS, PROFESSOR GERHARD MEGOW, PROFESSOR LYNN WINGET CONTRIBUTED MOST EFFECTIVELY TO THE TOTAL PROGRAM OF LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE.

Professor J. Albert Tracy taught speech and coached the debating team. Under his direction the debaters from Murray State College presented programs in 15 Western Kentucky high schools. He directed the Tenth Annual High School Debate Workshop on the campus of Murray State College which was attended by 125 students and faculty representing four states. Students from Murray State College judged the Kentucky High School Regional Speech Festival at Madisonville. The inter-collegiate debating team participated in four tournaments and had four single debates. An International Debate was held on the campus with a team representing the Scottish Universities.

We were saddened by the death of Edwin G. Schmidt. He died January 17. The position which he held was filled by Mr. Robert Payne. Mr. Payne has done an effective job of teaching and credit should go to Professor Schmidt, Professor Payne, Joe T. Erwin, Director of Public Relations, and to the students for the excellent job done with the College News. For the fourth consecutive year the College News was given the highest national rating by the Columbia Scholastic Press Association and the Associated Collegiate Press.

LIBRARY

DR. H. C. Woodbridge, Head Librarian, had published <u>Book I of Humboldtis Political</u>
<u>Essay on the Kingdom of New Spain</u>. The Kentucky Historical Society published two
short articles and two reviews during 1957–1958. Dr. Woodbridge is a contributor

TO <u>ABSTRACTS OF ENGLISH STUDIES</u>, KENTUCKY CHAIRMAN OF THE BIBLIOGRAPHICAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA, CHAIRMAN OF THE CONSTITUTION REVISION COMMITTEE OF KENTUCKY LIBRARY ASSOCIATION.

MRS. ANN COHRON, ASSISTANT LIBRARIAN, IN ADDITION TO HER DUTIES AS REFERENCE LIBRARIAN, SERVED AS CHAIRMAN OF THE COLLEGE AND RESEARCH SECTION OF KENTUCKY LIBRARY ASSOCIATION AND BY VIRTUE OF THE OFFICE IS A MEMBER OF THE KENTUCKY LIBRARY ASSOCIATION OF DIRECTORS. MRS. COHRON MADE A NUMBER OF TALKS DEALING WITH AMERICAN DRAMA IN MURRAY, PARIS, AND SURROUNDING AREA.

Miss Jean Wiggins, in addition to her duties as Assistant Librarian in charge of circulation, has helped on several radio programs presented as the "The Thoroughbred Hour."

MISS DOROTHY DENMAN RESIGNED AS ASSISTANT LIBRARIAN AT THE END OF JUNE, AND SHE IS BEING SUCCEEDED BY MRS. LAURIE IKERD.

MRS. MAMIE ANDERSON HAS SERVED EFFECTIVELY AS ASSISTANT LIBRARIAN.

Mrs. Annie L. Gunter is working this summer for Mrs. Cohron, who is on leave of absence.

LIBRARY SCIENCE

MISS REZINA E. SENTER, IN ADDITION TO DOING AN OUTSTANDING JOB IN LIBRARY SCIENCE, HAS SERVED AS VICE PRESIDENT AND CHAIRMAN OF THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE OF THE KENTUCKY LIBRARY ASSOCIATION. She is also a member of the Recruting Committee of American Library Association. She has spoken to a number of groups and has arranged a number of effective book exhibits. She served also as the Danforth Associate for Murray State College.

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS

Serving in the Department of Mathematics during the year were Dr. M. G. Carman, Miss Evelyn Linn, Mr. Harvey Elder, and Dr. William L. Stratton. Their activities were limited primarily to doing an effective job in teaching the students enrolled in Mathematics. Dr. Stratton, who had retired as Head of the Department of Mathematics at Kansas State College, did a splendid job during the year. Since he was on temporary appointment, his place has been taken by Mrs. Christine Parker, who is completing her doctorate at Auburn, Alabama. Mr. Kenneth Bullock has been employed and will also be a member of the Mathematics Department for the 1958–59 school year.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY SCIENCE

THE DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY SCIENCE HAS OPERATED IN A MOST EFFECTIVE MANNER. THE PERSONS MAKING THE ANNUAL INSPECTIONS HAVE BEEN MOST COMPLIMENTARY AND THE RECORDS OF THE ROTC STUDENTS IN SUMMER CAMP HAVE BEEN MOST GRATIFYING.

Lt. Col. Jesse D. Jackson, Professor and Head of the Department, has directed the program in a most proficient way and in addition to his duties at the college, he served as a member of the Four Rivers Boy Scout Council of America; as Chairman of the Program Committee of the Rotary Club; and has participated in the annual formal inspections of ROTC units in Ohio.

MAJOR GEORGE H. HALLANAN COMPLETED HIS TOUR OF DUTY AT MURRAY STATE COLLEGE AND RECEIVED AN OVERSEAS ASSIGNMENT. WE WERE DELIGHTFULLY PLEASED WITH HIS WORK AND REGRETED TO LOSE HIM AND HIS DELIGHTFUL FAMILY FROM THE COLLEGE AND THE CITY OF MURRAY.

CAPT. ROBERT ROWAN, IN ADDITION TO HIS WORK IN THE DEPARTMENT, HAS SERVED AS CUB MASTER OF THE LOCAL CUB SCOUT PACK AND ALSO PARTICIPATED IN THE FORMAL INSPECTION OF THE ROTC UNITS IN OHIO.

CAPT. WILBUR S. WAYMAN, JR., HAS DONE AN EFFECTIVE JOB OF TEACHING AND SERVED AS MARSHALL FOR THE JUNE COMMENCEMENT EXERCISES.

CAPT. JOHN BRYANT DID A SPLENDID JOB OF TEACHING AND ACCEPTED OTHER DUTIES CHEERFULLY AND CARRIED THEM OUT EFFECTIVELY.

M-Sgt. Drane Shelley, in addition to his teaching duties coached the ROTC Rifle Team. The team participated in 16 matches and won 15 of them. We are very proud of the achievements of the Rifle Team and the splendid job Sgt. Shelley did in coaching the team. Sgt. Shelley also gave his time in serving as markmanship instructor at the Boy Scouts of America camp.

SGT. RAYFORD VAUGHN CERTAINLY CARRIED OUT HIS DUTIES IN A MOST EFFECTIVE MANNER AND IS ONE OF THE MOST EFFICIENT PEOPLE ASSIGNED TO THE MURRAY STATE COLLEGE DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY SCIENCE. HE HAS ALSO SERVED AS A CUB MASTER OF THE LOCAL CUB SCOUT PACK AND PARTICIPATED IN THE FORMAL INSPECTION OF ROTC UNITS IN OHIO.

DEPARTMENT OF NURSING EDUCATION

Miss Ruth Cole, Head of the Department of Nursing Education has carried on a most effective program and in addition to her teaching duties, has given some general supervision to the Health Program at the college. She has served as a member of the Board of Directors of the 13th District Nurses Association of the Kentucky State Association of Registered Nurses. She has served as a member of the Convention Committee in 1958 for the State League of Nursing in Kentucky; President of the Murray Branch of Association of University Women; member of the program committee of Delta Kappa Gamma, an honor society for teachers.

DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL SCIENCES

THE DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL SCIENCES INVOLVES CHEMISTRY, GEOLOGY, PHYSICS, AND ELECTRONICS. AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 1957-58 SCHOOL YEAR, PROFESSOR R. A. JOHNSTON WAS GRANTED A LEAVE OF ABSENCE DUE TO ILLNESS AND DR. KARL HUSSUNG WAS EMPLOYED. MR. TED GEORGE WHO GAVE HALF HIS TIME TO MATHEMATICS IN 1956-57, GAVE FULL TIME TO PHYSICAL SCIENCES DURING 1957-58. MR. MAURICE CHRISTOPHER WAS EMPLOYED TO REPLACE MAURICE WALKER WHO HAD BEEN TEMPORARILY A MEMBER OF THE DEPARTMENT THE YEAR BEFORE.

DR. WALTER BLACKBURN, PROFESSOR AND HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT, HAS GIVEN MUCH OF HIS TIME TO THE SCIENCE INSTITUTE IN ADDITION TO HIS TEACHING. HE HAS SERVED AS DIRECTOR OF THE KENTUCKY ACADEMY OF SCIENCE; AS A MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL OF THE KENTUCKY ASSOCIATION OF CHEMISTRY TEACHERS; CHAIRMAN OF THE KENTUCKY LAKE SECTION OF THE AMERICAN CHEMICAL SOCIETY; PRESIDENT OF THE MURRAY CHAPTER OF AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF UNIVERSITY PROFESSORS. HE APPEARED ON THE PROGRAM OF THE SCIENCE SECTION OF THE EAST TENNESSEE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION.

Miss Roberta Whitnah, in addition to doing her usual good job of teaching, has served as President of the Murray Chapter of Delta Kappa Gamma; has been a member of the American Chemical Society; as well as making addresses to the American Association of University Women and other groups.

DR. PETE PANZERA, PROFESSOR OF CHEMISTRY, HAS DONE AN UNUSUALLY GOOD JOB OF TEACHING DURING THE YEAR. IN ADDITION TO HIS TEACHING DUTIES, HE HAS SERVED AS SECRETARY—TREASURER OF THE KENTUCKY LAKE SECTION OF THE AMERICAN CHEMICAL SOCIETY; AND ON THE INTER—COLLEGE COMMITTEE OF KENTUCKY STATE COLLEGES. HE HAS SPOKEN TO SERVICE CLUBS AND OTHER GROUPS THROUGHOUT THE AREA.

DR. W. G. READ, PROFESSOR OF PHYSICS, HAS DONE A SPLENDID JOB OF TEACHING AND HAS BEEN RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPROVEMENTS IN OUR PROGRAM OF PHYSICS TO THE END THAT AN INCREASING NUMBER OF STUDENTS ARE MAJORING IN PHYSICS. DR. READ CONTRIBUTED SIGNIFICANTLY TO THE SUMMER INSTITUTE IN 1957 AND HAS MADE A NUMBER OF ADDRESSES TO GROUPS THROUGHOUT THE AREA.

Professor A. G. Canon has done a good job of teaching and has devoted more of his time to Physics than to Chemistry during the past year. This summer he is spending his time with the 1958 Summer Science Institute.

Mr. Ted George is doing an effective job of teaching Physics and during the past year he has made significant growth professionally.

Dr. Karl Hussung has done a splendid job and has one article published in the <u>Journal of</u>
<u>Organic Chemistry.</u>

Mr. Maurice P. Christopher has done an effective job of teaching. He came to the college with a rich experience in high school teaching and has carried on most effectively here at the college.

It is anticipated that enrollment in Physical Sciences will increase except that there will be fewer courses offered in Chemistry to Home Economic majors and Nurses which should result in making the load in Chemistry just about as it was during the past year.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SCIENCES

DR. C. S. LOWRY, PROFESSOR AND HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT HAS CONTINUED TO ESTABLISH HIMSELF AS ONE OF AMERICA'S GREATEST TEACHERS. HE WAS THE FEATURED SPEAKER AT THE LIONS! CLUB CONVENTION AT PADUCAH AND HAS GIVEN TWELVE OR MORE MAJOR ADDRESSES BEFORE GROUPS THROUGHOUT THE AREA.

Professor Edward C. Duggins was added to the Department of Social Sciences at the beginning of the 1957–58 school year and has done an outstanding job of teaching.

PROFESSOR B. J. TILLMAN HAS DONE AN OUTSTANDING JOB OF TEACHING. HE WAS AWARDED A CERTIFICATE FOR OUTSTANDING CONTRIBUTION TO THE AIR FORCE RESERVE BY VIRTUE OF TEACHING A SPECIAL CLASS FOR AIR FORCE RESERVISTS. HE ALSO RECEIVED A MERIT AWARD FROM THE WEATHER BUREAU FOR 100 PERCENT ACCURACY IN REPORTING THE WEATHER. HE HAS MADE 30 OR MORE TALKS TO CIVIC AND EDUCATIONAL GROUPS.

Professor Auburn Wells has done a splendid job of teaching and has addressed a number of civic clubs throughout the area.

DR. FRANK Steely, Professor of History, has served as faculty advisor to the Faculty Development Council and also is the Danforth Foundation Associate. Articles published during the year are as follows:

- "The Established Churches and Slavery, 1850-1860", in The Register, April 1957 (official journal of the Kentucky Historical Society).
- "WILLIAM SHREVE BAILEY, KENTUCKY ABOLITIONIST" IN THE FILSON CLUB HISTORY QUARTERLY,
 JULY 1957 (OFFICIAL JOURNAL OF THE FILSON CLUB, LOUISVILLE).
- An article: on the Battle of Perryville is coming out in this July 1958 issue of The Register (not as yet off the presses).

IN ADDITION TO THE ABOVE, HE HAS HAD SEVERAL BOOK REVIEWS PUBLISHED.

Dr. Edmund G. Steytler has continued to improve in his teaching according to reports of Dr. Lowry.

TRAINING SCHOOL

THE TRAINING SCHOOL HAS HAD A MOST SUCCESSFUL YEAR. IN ADDITION TO THE REGULAR WORK AS CRITIC TEACHERS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE TRAINING SCHOOL FACULTY HAVE ASSISTED IN THE TEACHING OF "TECHNIQUES OF TEACHING CONSERVATION," AND BY SO DOING HAVE HELPED THE PERSONS WHO PARTICIPATED IN THE WORKSHOP TO EFFECTIVELY INTEGRATE CONSERVATION OBJECTIVES IN THE GRADE OR SUBJECTS WHICH THEY TEACH.

HEALTH SERVICE

THE COLLEGE HEALTH SERVICE IS OPERATED EFFECTIVELY UNDER THE DIRECTION OF DR. JAMES HART AND DR. CHARLES CLARK, MISS YUVONNE FLEMING AND MISS MIGNON FLEMING, NURSES, AND MISS RUTH COLE, DIRECTOR OF NURSING EDUCATION. ALL STUDENTS WERE GIVEN X-RAYS AND ALL NEW STUDENTS WERE GIVEN BLOOD TESTS AS A PART OF THEIR PHYSICAL EXAMINATION AT THE TIME OF FALL REGISTRATION. DURING THE YEAR POLIO SHOTS WERE GIVEN FREE TO ALL PEOPLE UNDER 20 AND GIVEN TO STUDENTS OVER 20 FOR \$1.00 PER SHOT.

STUDENT ACTIVITIES

Dean J. Matt Sparkman has served effectively as Dean of Students and also has Lillian Tate, Dean of Women. There are relatively few disciplinary problems during the year.

MRS. MARY W. BROWN HAS SERVED AS HOSTESS IN THE MENTS DORMITORY. MISS TATE HAS BEEN ASSISTED IN WELLS HALL AND IN THE DORMITORY BY MRS. WILLENA TILLMAN AND MRS. LOLA DANNENFELSER. MRS MARIE STANTON HAS SERVED AS HOUSE DIRECTOR FOR ORDWAY HALL DURING THE REGULAR YEAR AND MRS. INEZ CLAXTON IS SERVING AS HOUSE DIRECTOR FOR ORDWAY HALL DURING THE SUMMER SESSION. MISS REZINA SENTER HAS LIVED IN EAST HALL AND HAS HAD GENERAL SUPERVISION OF THE PEOPLE WHO LIVE THERE.

Social activities are coordinated in the office of the Dean of Students. The Student Council works cooperatively with the Dean of Students in planning and carrying through social activities. There are more than 30 separate clubs and organizations on the campus and each is active in its area of interest, but each operates in accordance with the policies of the school. The Social Committee is composed of a representative from each club, sorority, and fraternity and this committee meets monthly to coordinate social functions and actually serves as a clearing house for meeting dates for all clubs and organizations on the campus.

ALUMNI ASSOCIATION

The Alumni Association has operated effectively throughout the year with Mr. Clifton Thurman, Nashville, president; Tim O'Brien, Vice-president; and Marvin Wrather, Secretary and treasurer. The Association publishes for distribution quarterly the Alumnus. The officers of the association have received many compliments on the attractiveness and effectiveness of the publication.

THE ANNUAL BANQUET OF THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION WAS HELD ON MAY 31. THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION SCHOLARSHIPS WERE AWARDED TO MISS JUDITH ELAINE CARMAN OF MAYFIELD, KENTUCKY, AND EDDIE NEIL WELLS OF MURRAY, KENTUCKY.

THE OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION FOR 1958-59 ARE: ROY McDonald FROM CADIZ, KENTUCKY, PRESIDENT; PAT GINGLES, NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE, FORMERLY OF MURRAY, KENTUCK, VICE-PRESIDENT; AND MARVIN WRATHER, SECRETARY AND TREASURER.

STUDENT UNION BUILDING

The contractors are making satisfactory progress on the construction of the Student Union Building. The contract did not include the chillers and pumps for air conditioning. The architect estimates that the cost of installing the chillers and pumps would be \$75,000 if done after the other construction is completed. If it could be done before construction is completed, he feels that we would save \$7,000 or \$8,000 making the cost \$67,000 or \$68,000.

TENNIS COURTS

Three tennis courts were surfaced in 1957. Five more courts should be surfaced during the fiscal year 1957–58.

CAPITAL OUTLAY NEEDS

THE CAPITAL OUTLAY NEEDS ON EXISTING BUILDINGS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

	<u>1958-59</u>	<u> 1959–60</u>
Administration Building	\$10,150.00	\$
WILSON HALL	20,780.00	15,750.00
HEATING PLANT		8,250.00
ORDWAY HALL	6,830.00	10,000.00
WELLS HALL DORMITORY		103,018.00
TRAINING SCHOOL	24,860.00	5,800.00
Auditorium	15,947.50	
LIBRARY	20,170.00	11,000.00
SWANN DORMITORY	9,215.00	
CARR HEALTH BUILDING		26,020,00
INDUSTRIAL ARTS		10,830,00
Science Building	740.00	14,800.00
Oakhurst (Presidentis Home)		6,000.00
EAST HALL	2,000.00	

A REQUEST WAS SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE FOR ASSISTANCE IN CONSTRUCTING A DORMITORY TO HOUSE 236 MEN STUDENTS. THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE HAS GIVEN APPROVAL AUTHORIZING THE COLLEGE TO MAKE APPLICATION TO THE HOUSING AND HOME FINANCE AGENCY FOR A LOAN WITH WHICH TO CONSTRUCT THE DORMITORY. THE WOMEN'S DORMITORIES ARE ALREADY OVER-CROWDED AND IT WILL BE NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT A WOMEN'S DORMITORY TO HOUSE 200 WOMEN BY 1960. A CLASSROOM BUILDING TO HOUSE EDUCATION, BUSINESS, AND THE OVERFLOW IN SOCIAL SCIENCE SHOULD BE PLANNED IN 1959-60 AND BUILT IN 1961-62. APARTMENTS FOR MARRIED STUDENTS SHOULD BE PLANNED IN 1961-62 AND BUILT IN 1962-63.

The estimated cost of these buildings is \$650,000 for each of the dormitories, \$612,000 for the classroom building, and \$576,000 for the apartments for married students.

In suggesting that the new classroom building house education, business, and certain phases of the social sciences, it should be pointed out that the present classrooms in Wilson. Hall lend themselves more effectively to the needs of English, Language, and mathematics than to courses in business and in education, . It is a matter of taking out two departments and giving the two remaining departments a chance to expand.

It is hoped that as soon as the new cafeteria and student union building is completed that the ground floor in Wells Hall now occupied by the kitchen and cafeteria can be converted into sleeping rooms, laundry and lounges for the men of Wells Hall.

REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER

I AM ENCLOSING HEREWITH A REPORT TO THE BOARD MADE FOR ME BY P. W. ORDWAY, BUSINESS MANAGER, WHICH SETS FORTH IN DETAIL THE RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNDS AS WELL AS THE STATUS OF THE BONDED ACCOUNTS. THE REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER IS PRESENTED AS A PART OF THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT.

Expression of Appreciation

May I express my deep appreciation to each member of the Board of Regents for your interest and untiring efforts in building a greater Murray State College.

I SINCERELY BELIEVE THAT THE COLLEGE HAS GROWN NOT ONLY IN NUMBERS, BUT IN EFFECTIVENESS.

THROUGH THE COOPERATION OF THE BOARD, THE FACULTY, THE STAFF, THE STUDENTS, AND THE PUBLIC IN GENERAL, MURRAY STATE COLLEGE CAN CONTINUE TO GROW. IT IS NOW AT THE THRESHOLD OF UNPARALLELED ACHIEVEMENTS.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

PRESIDENT

RHW: PLM

REPORT OF P. W. ORDWAY, BUSINESS MANAGER

TO THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF REGENTS OF

- I. SUMMARY OF FUND OPERATIONS (JULY 1, 1957 June 30, 1958)

REVOLVING FUND ACCOUNT No. 36-2-13-001:
BALANCE JULY 1 1957 - ENCUMBRANCES BRI.

BALANCE BROUGHT FORWARD

\$ 6,043.79

86,660,17 \$ 92,703.96 652,315,19

Receipts 1957-58..........

Total \$904,025.00

\$745,019.15

	Expenditures and Encumbrances \$904,025,00	\$703,953,78
	Balance	\$ 41,065.37 *
	BALANCE ON DEPOSIT IN PEOPLES BANK 6-30-1958	2.633.21
	Total	\$ 43,698.58
	* This amount will be brought forward to the 1958–59 fiscal year we brances for the 1957–58 fiscal year have been liquidated.	/HEN ALL ENCUM
	(B) BUILDING CONSTRUCTION AND RENOVATION ACCOUNT No. 36-2-13-101; ON DEPOSIT WITH STATE TREASURER	\$43 , 830 , 00
п.	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM STUDENTS	
	Spring 1955	
	FALL 1955	
	Spring 1956	
	FALL 1956	
	Spring 1957	
	FALL 1957	
	Spring 1958	,
	\$445.41	
III.	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM VETERANS ADMINISTRATION	
IV.	Accounts Receivable - July 1, 1958 \$226.00 FARM STATEMENT - July 1, 1957 to June 30, 1958	
	Receipts:	
	RECEIPTS: FARM AND GARDEN PRODUCE	
	Товассо	
	Poultry	
	DAIRY PRODUCTS	
	Wool	
•	LIVESTOCK	
	Show Premiums	
	Misicellaneous	
	Total	\$ 32,144.39
		,
	Expenditures:	
	Salaries	
	VETERINARY AND TESTING SERVICE	
	Travel	
	Utilities	
	REPAIRS TO VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 1,954.64	
	MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS 1,950.59	
	DAIRY PRODUCTS	
	FEEDS 7,493.75	
	Motor Fuels and Lubricants 1,391.56	
	Heating Fuels	
	Medical Supplies	
	Agricultural Supplies	
	Seed and Fertilizer	
	Commercial Supplies	
	RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT	
	Insurance	
	Miscellaneous	
	Machinery and Implements	
	F.I.C.A. Taxes 413.64	
	K.E.R.S. 433,49	40,310,28
	130001130000000000000000000000000000000	<u>40.310.40</u>
	. Total Expenditures exceeding Receipts	\$ 8,165,89
	TOTAL BALENDI ONES EXCEPTIONALISTE	,

V.	CANNERY STATEMENT - JULY 1, 1957 TO JUNE 30, 1958	
	Receipts:	£ 2 200 27
	CANNED PRODUCTS AND CANNING FEES	\$ 2,309.27
	_	
	Expenditures	
	Salaries and Wages	• •
	Maintenance of Equipment	
	Maintenance of Building 284.15	
	COMMERCIAL SUPPLIES	•
	RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT	
	Miscellaneous	
	F.I.C.A. Taxes	
	Total	4,613,80
	Total Expenditures exceeding Receipts	\$ 2,304.53
	TOTAL MAPERSTIONES EXCEPSION TECHNICS	+ -,oooo
M	CAFETERIA STATEMENT - June 1, 1957 - May 31, 1958	
VI.		
	The second secon	
	Receipts:	
	Meal Tickets	
	CASH RECEIVED AT DOOR	
	K.E.A. Conference	
	HIGH SCHOOL SENIOR DAY LUNCH 366.66	
	ALUMNI ASSOCIATION BANQUET 276.89	
	OTHER CREDITS:	
	MEALS FOR EMPLOYEES (Nurses and House Dire.) 1,154.85	
	ATHLETIC TEAMS AND OTHER GROUPS 6,136,49	
	Total	\$269,963.17
		4230,000
•	Expenditures:	
	Expenditures: Salaries and Wages	
	FOOD PRODUCTS	
	WATER AND ELECTRICITY	
	Coal and Gas	•
	Repairs to Equipment	
	LAUNDRY AND DRY CLEANING	•
	HOUSEHOLD AND KITCHEN SUPPLIES 1,025.40	
	OTHER SUPPLIES	
	Other Expenses	· 248,896,52
	Profit for Period	\$.21,066,65
	COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS FOR THE PAST THREE YEARS	
	June 1, 1956 - May 31, 1957 - Profit \$ 19,594.13	
	June 1, 1955 - May 31, 1956 - Profit	
	May 28, 1954 - May 31, 1955 - Profit	
	THAT EGILDON THAT OIL 1990 C. I ROPHI, T. I.	
1/11	BONDED ACCOUNTS - STATEMENTS AS OF JULY 1, 1958	
VII,		
	H. B. W. H. Many and H. C.	D
	HEALTH BUILDING AND HOME MANAGEMENT HOUSE	DEPOSITED
	BALANCE IN BUILDING REVENUE, ACCOUNT \$11,153,22	BANK OF MURRAY
	BALANCE IN BOND AND INTEREST RETIREMENT ACCT 9,010,00	Peoples Bank
	BALANCE IN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT : 7,377,64	BANK OF MURRAY
	Total on Deposit	
	U. S. Treasury Bonds purchased from surplus	
	IN HEALTH BUILDING ACCOUNT:	
		DATE OF PURCHASE
	U. S. TREASURY BOND No. 25909 - 2-1/8 PERCENT \$10,000.00	August 1, 1954
	U. S. TREASURY BOND No. 15501 - 2-1/8 PERCENT 10,000.00	JANUARY 21, 1956
		•
	Bonds outstanding on this account \$32,000.00.	
	INTEREST RATE 4 PERCENT AND FINAL MATURITY DATE	
	November 1, 1963. Amount to be paid during	
	PERIOD JULY 1, 1958 - JULY 1, 1959 FOR BONDS	
	\$5,000,00 INTEREST \$1,180,00	

\$5,000.00, INTEREST \$1,180.00.

	FINE ARTS BUILDING	DEPOSITED
	BALANCE IN BUILDING REVENUE ACCOUNT	BANK OF MURRAY
	BALANCE IN BOND AND INTEREST RETIREMENT ACCT 4,243.56	BANK OF MURRAY
	BALANCE IN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT	BANK OF MURRAY
	Total on Deposit	
	U. S. Treasury Bond purchased from surplus	
	IN FINE ARTS BUILDING ACCOUNT:	
		Date of Purchase
	U. S. TREASURY BOND No. 25723 - 2-1/8 PERCENT \$10,000.00	Jan. 21, 1956
	Bonds outstanding on this account \$14,000.00.	
	INTEREST RATE 2-1/4 PERCENT AND FINAL MATURITY DATE	
	APRIL 1, 1961. AMOUNT TO BE PAID DURING	
	PERIOD JULY 1, 1958 - JULY 1, 1959 FOR BONDS	•
	\$4,000.00, INTEREST \$315.00	
	1054 B	_
		DEPOSITED .
	BALANCE IN BOND AND INTEREST RETIREMENT ACCT \$62,984.23	Bank of Murray
	Bonds outstanding on this account \$178,000.00.	
	INTEREST RATE 3-1/4 PERCENT JULY 1, 1955 TO JULY 1,	
	1970 AND 3 PERCENT FROM JULY 1, 1970 TO JULY 1, 1974,	
	FINAL MATURITY DATE JULY 1, 1974. AMOUNT TO	
	BE PAID DURING PERIOD JULY 1, 1958 - JULY 1, 1959.	
	FOR BONDS \$8,000.00, INTEREST \$5,497.50.	
	1955 Dormitory Revenue Bonds - Woods Hall.	DEPOSITED
	BALANCE IN DORMITORY REVENUE ACCOUNT \$22,865.22	
		THE KY. TRUST CO.
		LOUISVILLE, KY.
	Bonds outstanding on this account \$818,000.00.	
	INTEREST RATE 2-3/4 PERCENT AND FINAL MATURITY DATE	
	DECEMBER 1, 1995. Amount to be paid during period,	
	JULY 1, 1958 - JULY 1, 1959 FOR BONDS \$13,000.00,	
	INTEREST \$22,316.25	
	COLLEGE BOOKSTORE OPERATION - JULY 1, 1957 - JULY 1, 1958	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Total Sales	
	COST OF GOODS SOLD AND EXPENSES	
	Cost of Goods Sold and Expenses	
,		
,	NET PROFIT	
,	NET PROFIT	
,	NET PROFIT	
1	NET PROFIT	
	NET PROFIT	

The buildings, equipment, and livestock have been insured in the Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund for the 1958–59 fiscal year. The certificates of insurance have not been received from the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund and the definite amount of the

INSURANCE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR CAN NOT BE REPORTED UNTIL THE CERTIFICATES ARE RECEIVED.

The valuations on the buildings, contents and livestock have been furnished Mr. C. L. Martin, Director, Fire and Allied Lines of the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. MITCHELL THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT THE PRESIDENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ALONG WITH THE BUSINESS MANAGER'S REPORT. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. DORAN AND WAS CARRIED LINANIMOUSLY.

REPORT ON THE PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL LAND FOR THE COLLEGE,

In accordance with the action taken by the Board at the meeting on June 20, 1958, Mr. Doran wrote a letter to Lieutenant Governor Waterfield on July 23, 1958, in regard to the proposed acquisition by Murray State College of 32.8 acres of land from Mid-South Clay Company. His letter was referred to the Department of Finance for reply which is as follows:

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

FRANKFORT

August 4, 1958

Mr. H. GLENN DORAN PEOPLES BANK MURRAY, KENTUCKY

RE: PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY MURRAY
STATE COLLEGE OF 32.8 ACRES FROM
MID-SOUTH CLAY COMPANY.

DEAR MR. DORAN:

Your letter of July 23, 1958 to Lieutenant Governor Waterfield in connection with the above captioned acquisition has been referred to this department for reply. Under the statutes, KRS 164.410, the board of regents has the power to purchase and hold property that the board deems necessary for school purposes, subject however to the approval of the Commissioner of Finance as provided in KRS Sections 56.470 and 56.500. Inasmuch as the proposed purchase calls for the expenditure of capital construction funds, which are administered by this department, it is imperative that this department be furnished information by the college sufficient to show the existence of a need for the additional real estate. Accordingly, we will need a letter from the board of regents, or its designated agent, setting out the following general information:

- (A) A STATEMENT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH HAVE BROUGHT ABOUT
 THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL REAL ESTATE.
- (B) Explanation of the use which will be made of the real estate.
- (C) THE SIZE, TYPE AND GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS OF THE AGENCY'S REAL ESTATE NEEDS.
- (D) Source of funds to be used for the purchase of real estate.
- (E) Recommendation as to where real estate could be secured which would meet the specifications of the agency. (This recommendation should include the exact location and description giving approximate boundaries and area of the property, and its estimated selling price. This recommendation should be made in the same manner as the agency makes a suggestion or recommendation as to a possible vendor when presenting a purchase requisition to the Division of Purchases under regular purchasing procedures.)

Upon receipt here of the requested information we will be in a better position to advise with the college with respect to its taking the necessary steps to acquire this land,

Yours sincerely,

-s- Orba F. Traylor

ORBA F. TRAYLOR
COMMISSIONER OF FINANCE

WHEREAS, MURRAY STATE COLLEGE HAS GROWN RAPIDLY: IN THAT THE ENROLLMENT HAS INCREASED MORE THAN TEN PERCENT EACH YEAR DURING THE PAST SIX YEARS, AND

WHEREAS, EVEN GREATER GROWTH IS ANTICIPATED DURING THE NEXT TEN YEARS, AND, WHEREAS, FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS WILL BE DETERMINED BY LAND AVAILABLE FOR BUILDING SITES AND OTHER USES. AND

WHEREAS, 32.8 ACRES OF LAND EAST AND ADJOINING THE PRESENT COLLEGE PROPERTY MAY BE PURCHASED FOR \$17,000,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF THIS TRACT OF LAND, SOLICIT THE APPROVAL OF THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCE OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY, AND REQUEST OF HIM AN ALLOTMENT FROM THE CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF \$17,000 WITH WHICH TO BUY THE AFORE MENTIONED LAND AND THAT WE FURTHER REQUEST THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCE TO PROCEED WITH THE PURCHASE OF THIS TRACT OF LAND FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE.

MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. WHITE THAT THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION BE APPROVED, SECONDED BY MR. MITCHELL, AND THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON ITS ADOPTION WITH THE FOLLOWING RESULTS: MR. WHITE, AYE; MR. DORAN, AYE; MR. MITCHELL, AYE; AND DR. MARTIN, AYE.

Request from Alumni Association presented by Mr. Wrather, Secretary of the Alumni Association, approved.

MR. M. O. WRATHER, SECRETARY OF THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION, PRESENTED TO THE BOARD THE REACTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION TO THE EFFECT THAT SINCE DR. RAINEY T. WELLS, WHO DIED ON JUNE 15, 1958, IS CONSIDERED THE FOUNDER OF MURRAY STATE COLLEGE, THAT A SUITABLE MEMORIAL SHOULD BE PLACED ON THE CAMPUS IN HONOR OF DR. WELLS. IN ACCORDANCE WITH MR. WRATHER'S REQUEST, A MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. DORAN THAT THE BOARD OF REGENTS COOPERATE WITH THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION AND THE PRESIDENT IN ERECTING A SUITABLE MEMORIAL TO DR. WELLS. THIS MOTION WAS SECONDED BY MR. MITCHELL AND WAS PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Purchase of New Furniture for President and Secretary's Office.

Motion was made by Mr. Mitchell that the President be authorized to purchase a suitable desk for the President's office and also to purchase a secretarial desk for the secretary with the stipulation that the purchase be made after the fall registration to make sure that sufficient funds are available to make these purchases. This motion was seconded by Mr. White and the roll was called on its adoption with the following results: Mr. White, aye; Mr. Doran, aye; Mr. Mitchell, aye; and Dr. Martin, aye.

COMMITTEE APPOINTED BY DR. MARTIN TO CHECK THE PRESIDENTIS HOME FOR REPAIRS.

DR. MARTIN APPOINTED THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEE TO CHECK THE PRESIDENT'S HOME FOR REPAIRS, REPLACEMENTS, OR FOR WHATEVER IS NEEDED: MR. DORAN, MR. MITCHELL, AND MR. WHITE.

CONCERT-LECTURE SERIES.

In accordance with the action of the Board on April 25, 1958, a report was given on the civic sentiment regarding the Concert-Lecture Series. Dr. Woods reported that Mr. Farrell informed him that civic organizations had signified an interest in Concert-Lecture Series at Murray State College. President Woods suggested that for the coming year that an effort be made to initiate a limited Concert-Lecture Series along with convocations in keeping with funds available from the college. Motion was made by Mr. Doran that since it was found that in keeping with the interest shown, that the President's suggestion should be followed in that the program of Concert-Lecture Series \

Be kept within the funds available and that the college try to integrate these programs with the convocation programs with tickets that can be sold within the area, moving slowly at first and increasing the program as interest increases. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and was carried unanimously.

MEETING ADJOURNED.

Motion was made by Mr. Doran that the meeting be adjourned. This motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and was carried unanimously.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY